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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Today, the Pueblo of San Ildefonso is built around one large
plaza formerly divided by a line of one-story structures which
were razed-in' the 1960's. A circular ceremonial kiva is located
on the south end of the plaza and a two-story rectangular one
is situated southwest of it. Built in 1905, an adobe church
occupies the site of the 17th century mission located northwest
of the village. A number of scattered houses are to the south.
The one and two-story adobe houses in the pueblo proper are in
excellent condition as is the church.

In 1776, Fray Francisco Atanasio Dominguez inventoried the
pueblo and noted:

Said pueblo is in the form of a very large plaza,
clean and without any impediments. It consists of Ffour
tenements with three large passageways to the east, south,
and north at their respective corners, and a small one to
the west to lead to the church. The houses are arranged
as I said at Tesuque, but larger and better kept than
there. Therefore I say no more. Around the plaza at
proportionate distances are the corrals, ovens, and
henhouses. (p. 71).

Major John G. Bourke in 1881 also visited the village and
recorded:

, _The pueblo of San Ildefonso is built around a square;
'thé‘ﬁouses,‘mOStly of two stories, and in all respects
clean and neat, except from the chaff of recently thrashed
wheat. Half a dozen cottonwood trees are growing in the
-, .. BSQuare. Ovens are to be seen on the roofs as well as on
- the ground. (p. 64).

-.;. .s+sThe estufa [kiva] seen and entered in San Ildefonso is
" " rdund, 15' in D. and almost exactly the same as those
described as examined in other pueblos. (p. 66).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Established a mile from the present village about 1300 a.d.,
the Tewa speaking Pueblo of: San Ildefonso was first visited by
Gaspar Castafio de Sosa in 1591. Two other Spaniards, Francisco
Leyva de Bonillo and Antonio Gutierrez de Humafia led an
unauthorized expedition into New Mexico in 1595 and spent a
year among the northern pueblos making San Ildefonso their
principal headquarters. In 1598, Juan de Ofate, the Colonizer
of New Mexico, named the pueblo "Boue, which we call San
Ildefonso."

Shortly after the coming of Offate, the village was relocated
at its present site. In 1601, a convento and church were
already in use but not until 1610 was a permanent mission,
situated on the northwest side of the pueblo, established by
Fray Andrés Baptista. San Ildefonso in 1641 still had a church
and convento and two visftas, the Pueblos of San Juan and Santa
Clara. At this time, the population was 400 and by 1680, it
had doubled. L ‘ ‘

The San Ildefonso Indians played a major role in the great
Pueblo Revolt of 1680. Their chief, Francisco, was one of the
major leaders of the rebellion against Spanish rule and it was
by his command that- the two resident missionaries, Fray Antonio
Sanchez de Pro and Fray Luis de Morales,were killed along with
many of the Spanish colonists in the area. The church was also
destroyed during the revolt. On October 1, 1692, General Diego
de Vargas Zapata Lujan Ponce de Ledén, who reentered the area in
that year, obtained a promise from the San Ildefonso Indians to
keep the peace and once again to submit to the authority of the
§panish. When Vargas returned the following year, the natives
bnce more pledged their peaceful intentions but soon entrengéd
themselves on the mesa of San Ildefonso along with most of the
bther Tewas as well as Tanos. On Januvary 30, 1694, vargas
visited the base of the mesa and ascertained that the natives
would not return to their homes without a struggle. As a
result,he set out from Santa Fe on February 25, with 60 fully
armed soldiers, 30 militia and some Tndian allies from the
Pueblo of Pecos to storm the mesa. After a series of unsuccess-
ful attacks, he returned to Santa Fe on March 19. oOn May 21,
Vargas led a small expedition against the natives and recovered
A8 stolen horses. He marched again on September 4th with all
(See Continuation Sheet)
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- 1'8. SIGNIFICANCE continued:

his available forces to remove the Tewas and Tanos from the mesa
of San Ildefonso. By holding the fields planted in the river
valley, Vargas was able to starve the defenders of the mesa into
submission. Fray Francisco Cornera assumed his duties at the
village on October 5, 1694 and was additionally assigned the
visita of Jacona. The population decreased at this time to 188.
The Indians rebelled again on June 4, 1696 and Cornera and Fray
Antonio Moreno of Nambé were killed when the natives burned the
church and convento in which the priests had taken refuge. Vargas
quickly put down this revolt.

In 1706, Fray Juan Klvarez recorded, "The church is being
built and is well advanced." Fray Miguel de Menchero noted that
Santa Clara was a visita of San Ildefonso in 1744. Bishop of
Durango Pedro Tamardn visited the village in 1760 and cited 484
persons as living within the confines of the pueblo. Fray
Francisco Atanasio Dominguez inventoried San Ildefonso Pueblo
in 1776 and noted, "The church is adobe with walls nearly a vara
[1 vara equals 32 2/3 inches] thick. The outlook and main door
are due south. It is 35 varas long from the door to high altar,

7 wide, and 8 high as far as the bed molding," Domfnguez listed
387 persons living in the pueblo and 70 non-Indians residing in
the area. Fray Josef Benito Pereyro enumerated 272 persons in
the village proper in 1808.

The Pueblo of San Ildefonso suffered greatly from Spanish
encroachment to the extent that in the 1760's, Felipe Tafovya,
protector of the Indians and assigned to the pueblo, noted that
the encroachments were so serious that some San Ildefonso
families had virtually no agricultural lands at all. (Jenkins,

p. 125). Part of the disputed lands were restored to San
Ildefonso by a 1786 decision of Governor Juan Bautista de Anza.
The Conress of the United States on December 22, 1858 confirmed
a grant of 17,292,64 acres of land to the pueblo and this was
patented on November 1, 1864. Later court decisions increased
‘this acreage to 19,844. )

In 1870, Indian Agent W, F.M. Arny visited the pueblo and
listed 156 persons residing at the village. Major John G. Bourke,
U.S.A., viewed the village in 1881 and recorded "The estufa [kiva]
seen and -entered in San Ildefonso is round, 15' in D. and almost
exactly the same as those described as examined in other pueblos.
The church is very dilapidated and the rain runs through the roof
in a perfect stream." (p. 66). A new church was built on the
northwest corner of the pueblo in 1905 and is constructed on the
site of the 17th century mission destroyed during the 1680 and
1696 revolts. The church described by Bourke was razed in 1910.

Over the years, the pueblo has kept many of its ceremonies such
as the Buffalo and Comanche dances performed on alternate years
|on January 23rd. Pottery making at the village has become
extremely famous as a result of the efforts (See Continuation Shee

t #2)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE continued:;

of Maria Martinez who with her late husband, Julian, developed
the popular matte-black design on polished black ware, now
incorporated by other potters at San Ildefonso Pueblo, or
Pohwoge as it is known to the natives.
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The historic district for the Pueblo of San Ildefonso is a
rectangle measuring approximately 1,150 feet by 1,850 feet (for
latitude and longitude see section 10 of form 10-300 and required
U.S5.G.S. map).

Constructed around a plaza, the Pueblo of San Ildefonso
consists of one and two-story adobe structures. Incorporating
flat roofs, firewalls, exposed vigas (beams), a setback on the
second story and both round and rectangular kivas, the pueblo is
built in the traditional "Pueblo Style" of architecture and is
similiar to other New Mexico pueblos.

The individual buildings within the district are structurallj
sound although several are in need of maintenance work such as
roof repair and replacement of rotting vigas. For the location
of specific structures within the district, see the enclosed
B.I.A. map.
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